NATIONS CCPR

International covenant paa

on _C|_V|| and COPR/ O SR 1543

political rights 24 January 1997
ENGLI SH

Oiginal: FRENCH

HUVAN RI GHTS COW TTEE
Fi fty-ei ghth session
SUMVARY RECORD OF THE 1543rd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, CGeneva,
on Tuesday, 29 Cctober 1996, at 10 a.m

Chairnman: M. AGJ LAR URBI NA

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 40 OF THE
COVENANT ( conti nued)

Initial report of Gabon (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenmorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 96-18759 (E)



CCPR/ U SR 1543
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.20 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 40 OF THE
COVENANT (agenda item4) ( continued)

Initial report of Gabon (continued) (HR/CORE 1/Add.65; CCPR C 31/ Add. 4;
CCPR/ C/ 58/ L/ GAB/ 3)

1. The nenbers of the delegation of Gabon took places at the Committee
table.

2. M. NMAMBOUNDOU MOUYAMVA  (Gabon) said that the del egation would reply to
the questions asked at the 1542nd neeting, on part Il of the list of issues

3. M. RAZINGUJE (Gabon) provided clarifications on physical restraint.
That was not civil inprisonmet for the non-paynment of debt, but a penalty

i mposed for a crimnal offence consisting of non-perfornmance of a court
decision. It was ained in particular at individuals who arranged their own

bankruptcy and refused to conply with the court's decision. H s del egation
had taken due note of the suggestions nmade by nenbers of the Committee in that
regard and woul d pass themon to the conpetent authorities.

4. M. EMBINGA (Gabon), replying to questions on article 12 of the
Covenant, beginning with the questions raised about the exit authorization
system i nposed on foreigners, said that nationals were conpletely free to nove
about as long as they could prove their identity, which meant carrying sone
formof identification on their persons at all tines. Foreigners also had
conpl ete freedom of novenent once they had net the legal conditions for entry
and residence. Residence was based on obtaining a residence card, issued upon
payment of a charge of CFAF 50,000. A repatriation bond equivalent to the
price of an airline ticket was al so required, which was in conformty with the
provi sions of international |aw on the guarantee of repatriation, and which
shoul d be di stingui shed fromthe expenses incurred for the residence card.

Ref ugees did not have to put up the repatriation bond, and the residence card

was free. In practice, the exit authorization formality did not limt freedom
of movenent. It did not apply to tenporary visitors (tourists and
busi nessmen) and met the sane concerns as checks at border crossings. It was

never refused as |long as the | egal residence requirenments were net. Gabon had
the wel |l -deserved reputati on of being a country of inmgration. The sizeable
foreign colony lawfully resident in the territory lived peacefully and was
considered to be an asset for the country's econom c and cul tural devel opnent.
Inmigration nust, however, be controlled; illegal entry and exit could not be
tolerated and therefore constituted a | egal offence. The authorities had
recently undertaken repatriation and regul ari zati on operations with regard to
illegal immgrants. The policy towards exit authorizations remnained flexible,
aimed at finding a solution that coul d reconcile observance of the rights
covered by the Covenant with the defence of Gabon's vital interests, as the
Conmmi ttee had suggest ed

5. M. RAZINGJE , responding to the questions on article 82 of the
Constitution concerning the establishrment of emergency courts, said that,

prior to the elimnation of the State Security Court, there had been four such
courts. The three remaining courts were the Supreme Court of Justice; the




CCPR/ T SR 1543
page 3

Special CGrimnal Court, for trying officials who had m sappropriated public
funds; and the Special Mlitary Court instituted by Act No. 7 of

20 Decenber 1973. That Court was conpetent to try servicemen for offences
coommtted either in peacetine or in wartinme. It was conposed of a mlitary
judge and two mlitary assessors, for |lesser acts, and three judges and six
mlitary assessors, for crimnal offences.

6. M. NMAMBOUNDOU MOUYAVA  (Gabon) turned to the question of the powers
granted to the President of the Republic by article 26 of the Constitution to
i ssue ordi nances when parlianent was in recess. It should be noted that any

such ordi nance was subject to subsequent ratification by the National Assenbly
and to the approval of the Constitutional Court, it being understood that
anyone who considered his rights to have been violated could challenge a | aw
before the Constitutional Court. The Gabonese Parlianent was not currently in
session. For the past five nonths the President had had available to himthe
prerogative conferred by article 26 but had not yet used them although cases
had ari sen where |egislation shoul d have been passed; in order to authorize
the Government to borrow on behalf of the State, for exanple, the President
coul d have adopted a | aw of authorization, but he had preferred not to do so.
Article 26 of the Constitution existed for cases where interi mneasures would
be needed, but the powers it authorized were always offset by the ability of
the next Assenbly and the Constitutional Court to annul the deci sion.

7. M. RAZINGE (Gabon) provided additional information on the application
of the guarantees proclaimed under article 14 of the Covenant. Al
interrogations took place in conformty with the Code of Cimnal Procedure
and the party was informed of his rights. |If he did not speak French, he
could be assisted by a sworn interpreter. He was assured of the right to a
lawyer fromthe tinme of his first appearance before the exam ning nagistrate,
and was free not to nmake a statenent unless his attorney was present. None of
those guarantees was subject to any exceptions. In crimnal cases, any
accused person without a | awyer coul d have one assigned to him ex officio.
During the proceedi ngs, w tnesses were summoned and gave testinony; spouses
and of fspring could not be called upon to testify. The doubl e-hearing
princi pl e was guaranteed, and any court decision could be contested before a
court of appeal. It was also possible to apply for a judicial review, but
only on points of |aw

8. Wth regard to the crimnal liability of mnors, it should be stressed
t hat persons under age 13 could not be arrested. Mnors aged 13 to 18 could

be subject to commttal but could not be sentenced to a penalty as such. The
enphasi s was placed on measures for reintegration.

9. M. EMBINGA (Gabon) said that, within the framework of the application
of article 17 of the Covenant, which protected the right to privacy, further

i nformati on had been requested on house searches and body searches. Both
procedures were part of the judicial order and were strictly regulated. |If
the of fence was not inmmediately clear, a prelimnary investigation was opened,
in cases where the hone had to be visited, it was a house visit, and not a
search, that was ordered; and the witten consent of the party concerned was
required. In cases of flagrante delicto , investigatory powers were broader
searches coul d be undertaken in the presence of the occupant of the prenises




CCPR/ T SR 1543
page 4

and during the statutory hours of 5 a.m to 7 p.m Body search was anot her
formof search, was therefore subject to all the guarantees accorded to
searches in general and was undertaken under the sane conditions.

10. M. MAMBOUNDOU MOUYAMA  (Gabon), replying to a question on the rights of
legitimate and illegitinate children, said that the Gvil Code granted equa
rights to all children legally recognized by their parents.

11. Menmbers of the Committee had expressed concern about respect for the
rule of lawin Gabon. Everything was being done to establish the rule of |aw,
and great progress had already been nmade in that direction. The 1990

el ections had been followed by protests and riots, and the same had happened
in 1993. 1In early Cctober 1996, however, the elections had not given rise to
the least protest. The political class and public opinion had decl ared

t hensel ves satisfied with the legality of the voting process. Progress was
very real.

12. Further informati on had been requested on freedom of expression, the
right of peaceful assenbly and freedom of association. Prior to 1993, the
audi o-visual, filmand print nedia had been governed by a | aw of colonia
origin, dating fromb5 January 1960, which had been replaced by an ordi nance
adopted in 1993. It was very easy to create print nedia in Gabon. The only
requi rement was to obtain a receipt of statenent fromthe Mnister of

Communi cations, who did not have the right to refuse it as long as the
applicant submtted a copy of the printing contract entered into with the
printer and stipulated the nature of the distribution network. The M nister
of Trade then issued a licence to engage in comrercial activity. Ever since
their creation, the print nedia had functioned freely, and since 1993 no
journalist had been prosecuted by any political authorities for criticizing
them There was even a satirical newspaper which regularly | anbasted the Head
of State and the Government, as well as critical hunorous broadcasts on public
radi o. The special status of nedia professionals (see para. 57 of the initia
report) which had been on the agenda of Parlianent had now been adopted and
had entered into force. There were independent radio stations and a

prof essional union. The only persons not entitled to establish print media
were the President of the Republic and nmenbers of the Covernnent, agents of
the security forces, judges, nmenbers of the National Communication Council and
nmenbers of State bodies. There was also the statutory deposit procedure, but
it did not endanger freedomon the press. To date, only one newspaper had
been suspended from publishing, for a fixed period of tine, due to
mani pul ati on of photographs. Many publicati ons di sappeared sinply because
they were run by small- or medi umsized enterprises which were having trouble
making a profit. The authorities encouraged nergers of publications to

i ncrease their chances of survival. There was no censorship in Gabon, but the
authorities wanted to protect norals and custons and consequently banned
obscene publications. An effort was under way to protect youth through

| egi sl ati on agai nst the influence of violent fil ns.

13. Freedom of association was fully exercised, and there were two | arge
trade union federations, the Gabonese Trade Uni on Confederation and the riva
Ceneral Confederation of Free Trade Unions, which were recogni zed by the

I nternational Labour O ganization (I1LO and took part in all internationa
conferences. There were two unions for higher education and research and two



CCPR/ T SR 1543
page 5

for primary and secondary education. By way of exanple, one could cite a

| arge nunber of unions in the various sectors: communications professionals;
water and electricity distribution;, maritine, air and rail transport; health
and social security; post office and tel econmuni cati ons; magi strature; and

cl erkships. There was even a union of the unenpl oyed. Trade unions were not
requi red to have a m ni num nunber of menbers, as political parties were. The
right to strike was | egally guaranteed and exercised in practice; at that very
noment, teachers were on strike for pay rises. The right to strike went hand
in hand with the duty to do a m ni num anount of work. However, no one had
every been di smssed for going on strike

14, The right to denonstrate was al so guaranteed, as long as the Prefect of
Police and the Mnister of the Interior or his representative in the provinces
(prefect or governor) was informed 48 hours in advance and given the itinerary
to be foll owed by the denonstration. The organizers assunmed civil liability
and the authorities' consent was given tacitly.

15. Ms. ONDO (Gabon) said that the issues of contraception and famly

pl anni ng shoul d be viewed wi thin the denographi c context of Gabon. According
to the 1993 census, Gabon had a popul ati on of 1,011,000 and a popul ati on
density of 5 inhabitants per Km 2 In 1990, the birth rate had been
35.9/1,000, the nortality rate 15/1,000, the infant and child nortality rate
161/1,000 and the maternal nortality rate 600/100,000 |live births. During the
years 1985 to 1990, the infant nortality rate had been 99/1,000. GG ven those
unf avour abl e denogr aphi ¢ indi cators, the Governnent had deci ded to encourage a
hi gher birth rate, and its policy was ainmed at protecting the nother and child
by setting up appropriate and universally accessible health infrastructures.

A fertility research centre had been established and a maternal and child
health programme instituted. Several years previously, the Governnent had

i ssued an ordi nance forbidding contraception and penalizing abortion. In the
face of the rise in sexually transm ssible diseases, particularly AIDS, and
given the | arge nunber of deaths due to illegal abortions, the Government had

given in to the denands of wonen and repeal ed that ordi nance, thereby
permtting the conplete liberalization of contraception. The Mnistry of
Nat i onal Education had | aunched a sweepi ng programre on education in famly
life, including sex education courses at the primary and secondary school
levels. Wonen in Gabon coul d now exercise fully their right to reproductive
heal t h.

16. M. NMAMBOUNDOU MOUYAMA  (Gabon) returning to the question of ethnic
mnorities, assured the Conmittee that the Gabonese authorities were anxious
to govern the country according to the principle of unity and nationa
cohesion. There were certainly | arge nunbers of ethnic groups in Gabon, but
there was no discrimnation on grounds of ethnic origins. The terns used in
par agraph 69 of the report (CCPR 31/ Add.4) were obviously clunmsy and had not
hel ped the nenbers of the Conmittee to understand the authorities position on
the issue. As aresult of its ethnic diversity and history, Gabon did not
have the good fortune to have a single national |anguage shared by its entire
popul ati on. French renained the only “linguistic cement”' as the | anguage
used in the admnistration and in all official foruns. In admnistrative and
| egal procedures, those who did not speak French were provided with the
services of a translator.




CCPR/ T SR 1543
page 6

17. As to the question of political parties in Gabon, it should be stressed
that the regul ations concerning the size of nmenbership was in full conformty
with the spirit of the Constitution. The authorities did not encourage the
formation of regional or ethnic parties. That was why a political party had
to have at |least 3,000 nenbers in at least 5 of the 9 regions in order to be
regi stered. That being said, there were 20 parties in Gabon, which was a | ot
for a State of just over 1 mllion inhabitants. |1t would doubtless be better
for the parties to be | ess numerous but stronger, but that was a matter for
the voters to decide

18. As to the right to leave a political party, everyone was free to resign
froma political party in Gabon, except for holders of elected office. Recent
events in the National Assenbly had |led the authorities to require deputies
who wi shed to change their political affiliation to submt thenselves for
re-election. That was intended to discipline political practice and to conbat
corruption

19. M. EMBINGA (Gabon), replying to a question on State secrets, said that
the concept did not exist in Gabon and that there was therefore no | aw on the
matter. The | aw recogni zed only two concepts: professional secrets and

def ense secrets.

20. M. RAZINGUJE (Gabon), in response to questions on prosecutions that
coul d be brought against judges, said that a distinction should be nade

bet ween di sciplinary prosecuti ons and repressive measures. In the former
case, prosecutions emanated fromthe Suprene Council of justice, neeting as a
special instance and presided over by the President of the Judicial Court.
Penal ties ranged froma sinple warning to renoval w thout the right to
pension. In the second case, an investigation was initiated by the superiors
of the judge concerned, at the behest of the Supreme Council of Justice which
was then presided over by the Head of State. A judge could not be arrested
wi t hout the Supreme Council of Justice being apprised, except in cases of
flagrante delicto .

21. M. PRADO VALLEJO asked what exactly was neant by the phrase “attack on
the image of the nation” in paragraph 22 of the report. The word “image” had
a subj ective connotation, and it was inportant to know how t he Gabonese
authorities interpreted it. D d “attack on the image of the nation” cover
attacks on the synbols of the Republic? Wat penalties were called for in

that regard, and had they ever been applied?

22. The CHAI RVAN asked for clarifications on the courts for nenbers of the
arnmed forces, and al so asked what was the percentage of civil cases tried by
mlitary courts.

23. As to the deputies, he understood that they were required to respect
their party's voting instructions. Ws that true?

24. M. MAMBOUNDOU MOUYAMA  (Gabon), replying to M. Prado Vallejo, said that
attacks on the image of the nation referred to cases of high treason and
espi onage on behalf of a foreign Power in wartime. Those were exceptiona




CCPR/ U SR 1543
page 7

ci rcunstances, and they were not directed at such synbols of the Republic as
the flag or the national anthem which had al ways been respected by the
Gabonese.

25. Inreply to the question about the nmilitary courts, he said they were
not always in session. The judges were appointed for two-year terns but sat
only when needed. Menbers of the arnmed forces were tried by special mlitary
courts only in cases of high treason in wartime, and civilians could not be
tried by such courts.

26. M. EMBINGA (Gabon) said that nmenbers of the arned forces were tried
either by a civil or by a mlitary court depending on the nature of the
offence. Purely professional msdenmeanours by mlitary personnel were
referred to a disciplinary board or a conm ssion of inquiry, which was an

adm ni strative body for inspecting the arned forces. |If they had coommtted a
crimnal offence in acivilian setting, they were tried by an ordinary court.
If, on the other hand, the crimnal offence had been commtted within nmlitary
structures, it was dealt with by a mlitary court, which was presided over by
a civilian judge assisted by nilitary assessors.

27. M. NMAMBOUNDOU MOUYAMA  (Gabon), replying to the question on voting by
deputi es who were nenbers of a political party, said that they were free to
respect or not to respect the instructions of their party. O the other hand,
if a deputy or senator wi shed to resign fromhis party or change parties
during his termof office, he was obliged to resign fromhis parlianentary or
senatorial functions and to stand for re-election.

28. The CHAI RVAN t hanked the del egati on of Gabon for its replies and invited
the nenbers of the Commttee to submt their observations with regard to
consideration of the initial report of Gabon (CCPR/ U 31/ Add. 4).

29. M. EL SHAFEI , recalling the concerns expressed by nmenbers of the
Conmittee at the beginning of the examnation of the initial report of Gabon
to the effect that it did not provide sufficient information for the Commttee
to hold a meani ngful dialogue with the del egation, said that the del egation's
replies to the many questions raised orally or in witing had enabl ed the
Commttee to forma better idea of the situation in Gabon as to the status of
the Covenant and the manner in which it was being inplenented.

30. By way of general comment, he said that, since 1990, Gabon had been
nmovi ng towards a participatory denocracy of power-sharing and respect for
fundanmental rights and freedons with the National Reconciliation Conference
the Constituent Assenbly and the adoption of a new Constitution, article 1 of
which was alnost a bill of rights. In addition, there was a multi-party
system and several |aws had been enacted that instituted or strengthened
guarantees of the enjoyment of citizens rights (see HR /CORE 1/ Add. 65,

paras. 13 et seq.).

31. As part of that process, Gabon shoul d give serious consideration to the
commtnents it had assunmed by ratifying various international treaties. The
Covenant should take its rightful place in the constitutional and | egal order,
and its text should be dissenmnated, at a very mninumto menbers of the
judicial profession, lawers, the judicial police and prison officers.



CCPR/ T SR 1543
page 8

Exam nation of the initial report of Gabon could mark the start of a process
of educating and informng the public of the country's recognition of
international human rights standards, thereby assisting in the transition to a
stabl e soci ety.

32. H s second observation concerned the factors and difficulties that could
i npede the introduction and inplenentati on of constitutional and | ega

reforns. Perhaps one of the nmain obstacles was the wei ght of custom and
tradition in the natter of equality between the sexes, particularly with
regard to the custody of children. The only way to surnount that obstacle was
t hrough education, along with affirmative action to counterbal ance the

i nequal ity of the nost vul nerabl e.

33. During the dial ogue, the Commttee had expressed its concern at the gaps
in certain laws and the inconpatibility of other |laws, not to nmention
practice, with the Covenant. The laws on pre-trial detention pernitted
excessi ve use of such detention in relation to what was authorized by the
Covenant. The right to contact one's |lawer, famly or doctor in case of need
shoul d be guaranteed by |l aw. Freedom of association and the treatment of

i mm grants and refugees were areas requiring greater observance of the
Covenant by Gabon. Menbers of the Committee had al so frequently referred to
the contacts the authorities should establish with | ocal non-governnenta
organi zations (NGs) working in the field of human rights to encourage themto
participate in the denocratizati on and noderni zati on process

34. M. LALLAH said that, following the strong reservati ons he had expressed
as to the content and quality of Gabon's report, which he had found overly
brief, he would revise his opinionin the light of the very fruitful dial ogue
that had taken place between the Committee and the del egation, thanks to the
efforts of the latter. It was now up to the delegation to learn fromthe

di al ogue how to draft reports, knowing that it was the Commttee's wish to

hel p the State party during the crucial period of constitutional change. He
hoped that the Commttee woul d receive a second, detailed periodic report

whi ch woul d deal with all the laws and the rel evant decrees as well as with

the manner in which human rights were actually applied in Gabon.

35. By way of a final observation, he welcomed Gabon's return to denocracy
but recalled that, in order truly to prosper, denocracy required care,
particularly the conplete and constant respect for human rights as enunci at ed
in the Covenant. In concrete terns, he had had sone difficulty in
understanding the rol e played by deputies in Gabon. The del egati on had
certainly explained that point, but only very briefly, and he renuai ned puzzl ed
by the manner in which a deputy could lose his seat. In his opinion, someone
el ected by the people should be free and shoul d not be puni shed because of a
freely chosen position. Perhaps there were particular situations in Gabon

whi ch explained the rule that was followed. In any event, Gabon shoul d study
the Commttee's general comment on article 25 of the Covenant to see how it
was al ready applying its provisions. The Committee had been given very little
i nformati on on how el ecti ons were conducted and how deputi es kept or | ost
their seats. He hoped that Gabon would not wait 13 years to submt its second
periodic report and that the del egation that presented it would be as
conpetent and sizeable as at the current session



CCPR/ T SR 1543
page 9

36. M. PRADO VALLEJO said it was clear fromthe del egation's ora

expl anations that Gabon was in the mdst of a transition to denocracy and a
multi-party system a fact which shoul d be stressed, as there were no human
rights w thout denocracy. However, he had the inpression that the Gabonese

| egal systemdid not yet guarantee all the rights laid down in the Covenant,
despite the obligation under article 2. Unfortunately, the report did not
indicate the difficulties inpeding the inplenentati on and guarantee of the
rights covered by the Covenant, except by brief allusion in paragraph 70.
Consequently, he hoped that in its next periodic report Gabon woul d present a
clear and specific table of |legislation and of current guarantees and renedi es
to give effect to human rights.

37. More specifically, he asked for clarifications on what was stated in
paragraph 36 of the initial report concerning article 11 of the Covenant,
namely, that in civil clains, after a certain period of non-paynent, the

convi cted of fender could be subject to inprisonment, whereas the Covenant
stipulated that no one could be inprisoned for debt. Concerning article 12 of
t he Covenant, according to paragraph 37 of the report, freedom of novenent
could be restricted only by |aw; Gabon should specify in its next report what
restrictions there were on that right, whether they were in conformty wth
the law and whether the right was fully guaranteed. Wth regard to
mnorities, according to paragraph 69 of the report the problemdid not arise
in Gabon a priori. That response was not sufficient; further infornation was
needed, as problens had apparently occurred: what had been done to resol ve
them and with what results?

38. To his question on the nmeaning of the phrase “image of the nation”, used
in paragraph 22 of the report with regard to attacks on public order and
security as well as on the authority of the State, the del egation had replied
that those were acts of treason agai nst the nation, which was an offence of an
entirely different nature. He hoped that the second periodic report woul d
provide information on the laws and regul ations as well as on the applicable
penalties for the various offences covered by paragraph 22, and that the
second report would be submtted in the fairly near future.

39. Ms. CHANET thanked the delegation for its praiseworthy efforts to reply
to the Commttee's many questions which were justified in view of the |aconic
nature of the report, although at least it had given rise to | engthy and
informative oral expositions. She warmy wel coned the positive devel opnents
whi ch since 1990 had been | eadi ng Gabon towards a multi-party systemin the
process of transition towards real and conpl ete denocracy.

40. Her concerns pertained to the incorporation of the Covenant into
donmestic law. Gabon had a nonistic system and it was therefore regrettable
that the Covenant was not nentioned in the Constitution, not even in a
reference in the preanble. Mst of the rights proclained in the Covenant were
not enunciated in the Constitution, and Gabonese citizens had only limted
nmeans of becom ng aware of those rights and exercising them At a tine when
the country was proceeding to amend its Constitution, it seened the right
nmorment to reconmend that the del egation should convey to its Governnent the
Conmittee's observations on the incorporation into the Gabonese Constitution
of the rights guaranteed by the Covenant.



CCPR/ T SR 1543
page 10

41. On the subject of the death penalty, she understood that the Gabonese
authorities had preferred to allowit to beconme a dead letter without stirring
up a real debate that m ght be counterproductive. However, that did not
prevent the Penal Code from being revised, especially since the State Security
Court had been abolished: why then should the death penalty be naintai ned as
a penalty for offences that in fact were dealt with by that Court, such as
conspi racy?

42. She al so had serious reservations about the guarantees concerning
security of person. She noted that there was no adm nistrative preventive
detention, but renmined concerned by the | ength of police custody, which could
be as much as eight days, during which tinme the detainee did not have access
to a lawer or a doctor and was not brought before a judge. Pre-tria
detention in crimnal cases could be as long as two years, which did not seem
justified. She had also noticed that the services of an officially appointed
attorney were provided free of charge for crimes, fromwhich she deduced that
that was not the case for offences, a situation that was not in conformty
with the provisions of article 14 of the Covenant.

43. As to public freedons, including in particular freedom of novenent,
assenbl y and associ ation, whenever they were enshrined in the Constitution,
there was always a reservation concerning public order, which was often the
best way to rob those freedons of their meaning, if no definition was given.
Restrictions authorized in the name of public order should be surrounded by
certain guarantees - it should be stipulated that the restriction nmust be
provided for by law and that a judge must ascertain the legality and
appropriateness of the restriction, or at |east respect for the principle of
proportionality. As Gabon had just created an Adninistrative Court, it would
certainly be conpetent to decide on that type of renedy when public freedons
were at stake, and legislative and jurisprudential rules would make t hat

revi ew possi ble. The del egation should informthe authorities of the

requi rements of the Covenant and of the jurisprudence of the Commttee with
regard to the concept of public order.

44. She agreed with M. Lallah on his interpretation of article 25 of the
Covenant and on what the Committee expected of del egations when questions were
raised in connection with that article. Wth respect to article 27 of the
Covenant, it was well known that nmost countries sinply stated that they did

not have mnorities or had no problens vis-a-vis ninorities in the belief that
the article only neant that there should be no discrimnation against

mnorities. That was not, however, its precise neaning. A reading of the
Commttee's general comrent on that provision of the Covenant m ght enlighten

t he Gabonese del egation and help it to provide other answers in its second
periodic report, which she hoped woul d be submitted in the very near future.

45, Lord COMLLE said that, even before the Conmttee had begun its

exam nation of the initial report of Gabon, he, |ike other menbers, had
wonder ed about the status of the Covenant there and the rights proclainmed for
Gabonese citizens, which was the reason for the nmany questions posed to the
del egation. The information contained in the initial report and the core
docunent was insufficient, but the del egation had renedied that with its very
conpr ehensi ve replies, which had been inval uabl e and augured well for the
future. He was particularly struck by the fact that there was freedom of




CCPR/ U SR 1543
page 11

expression in Gabon, and even satirical publications and progranmes, which
coul d be very useful for individuals who could not defend their rights by
ot her neans.

46. M. BUERCGENTHAL said he appreciated the sincere efforts nade by the
Gabonese del egation to clarify the many points that had not been covered in
the report. D alogue with the del egation and the reading of the initia

report and the core docunment showed that when the State party had ratified the
Covenant it had not really reflected on any possible conflicts between that

i nstrument and Gabonese legislation. |In fact, there were very fewfields in
whi ch there was no contradiction between the two. That was why the Gover nnent
shoul d ask a national commission to study the various areas of conflict and
make reconmendations with a viewto amending the legislation. In that regard,
the Centre for Human R ghts coul d be of hel p, by conveying the Commttee's
interpretations of certain articles of the Covenant. The exercise would al so
serve to educate the Gabonese in the field of human rights.

47. The three specific needs he wi shed to stress were, first of all, to
create a civilian police force which was no |longer subject to mlitary
authority; to reviewthe length of police custody and pre-trail detention; and
to bring the provisions on proclamati on of a state of emergency into line with
article 4 of the Covenant.

48. M. ANDO expressed the hope that the next periodic report of Gabon woul d
enabl e himbetter to understand the situation in three areas. First of all
with regard to wonmen i n Gabonese society, he wondered whether, as a result of
traditi on, Gabonese wornen still had practical difficulties in defending their
rights at the civil and social |levels. During exam nation of the next

periodic report, perhaps there could be a few wormen in the del egation

49. Secondly, on the status of foreigners, he understood that a State was
free to regulate entry and exit of foreigners to and fromits territory, given
that freedom of inmmgration could have najor econonm c and soci al consequences.
On the other hand, immgrants had fundanental rights that had to be protected,
i ncl udi ng those spelled out in articles 12 and 13 of the Covenant. The Ofice
of the United Nations H gh Conm ssioner for Refugees (UNHCR) coul d provide
assistance to States experiencing difficulties in that regard. Information on
the subject should be included in the next periodic report.

50. The third subject of concern to himwas nmnorities, and in that
connection he agreed with Ms. Chanet's observations on the neani ng of
article 27 of the Covenant. Since French had been adopted as the | anguage of
communi cation in Gabon, litigants who did not understand French were entitled
to the free assistance of an interpreter. It was true that the colonia
heritage of many independent African countries had often inposed borders on

t hem whi ch had no real justification and which obliged very different groups
to coexist. It was difficult for Governnents to ensure the protection and
pronotion of human rights in such a context, but that difficulty was itself
the test of their political will. It was to Gabon's credit that freedom of
expression and freedomto criticize the Covernment were protected. 1In his
opi nion, education in the field of human rights would play an inportant role
in pronoting and protecting those rights, not only in prinmary, secondary and



CCPR/ CJ SR 1543
page 12

uni versity education but also in educating the public at large and the State
bodi es responsible for enforcing the law, particularly nenbers of the |ega
pr of essi on.

51. M. KLEIN thanked the delegation for filling in most of the gaps inits
initial report through its oral and witten responses. On substantive
matters, he wel conmed Gabon's return to denocracy, which undoubtedly guaranteed
greater respect for human rights. None the less, in order to ensure that
respect, it was indispensable to guarantee the independence of the judiciary,
and he strongly urged the Governnent to take the necessary rel evant measures.
Furthernore, the dissemnation of information on the existence of human rights
and nechani sns for their inplenentation was of the greatest inportance, and in
that regard he recommended that the authorities, particularly the Mnistry of
Human R ghts, shoul d cooperate closely with national groups for the defence of
human rights. Wthout disputing the useful ness of French as the nationa

| anguage of Gabon as a unifying factor, he recalled that the provisions of
article 27 of the Covenant should none the | ess be respected, given the
contribution that minorities in general could make to any nation. He hoped
that the second periodic report woul d descri be neasures taken to encourage
greater respect for the rights of mnorities.

52. Ms. EVATT welconed the dial ogue that had been initiated with the

del egation and thanked it for the willingness with which it had enlightened
the Commttee on the manner in which the rights proclained in the Covenant
wer e saf eguarded in Gabon. The country was in a transitional period and it
was still too early to know whether those rights would be specifically
enshrined in legislation and exercised in practice. An independent
institution should be set up in Gabon to nonitor respect for the fundamenta
rights of individuals. In addition, a national body should be asked to
determne the conpatibility of the Covenant and the Constitution and to
exam ne | egislation to see whether there were effective renedies in cases of
violations of the rights contained in the Covenant. Specific legislative
nmeasures shoul d al so be taken to ensure equality between nen and wonen in al
areas, especially with regard to access to educati on and enpl oynent and
participation in public life. An appropriate nechani smshould be put in place

to investigate thoroughly all allegations of ill-treatment in prison.
Li kewi se, steps were needed to ensure nore effective observance of the rights
enunciated in articles 12 and 27 of the Covenant. It was to be hoped that, in

its forthcomng periodic report, the Government woul d announce that it had
taken measures to ratify the first and second Qptional Protocols to the
Covenant .

53. M. BHAGMTI thanked the del egation for responding so frankly and

sincerely to the Commttee's questions, thereby enabling it to fill in the
gaps in the initial report of Gabon. He agreed with the observations already
made by nenbers of the Committee. In his opinion it would be desirable for

the Covernnent to set up a national commission to nonitor inplenentation of
the rights covered by the Covenant, to determ ne the extent to which nationa

l egislation was in conformty with the Covenant and if necessary to fornul ate
recomrendations for anending certain laws. Gven that there had been no
executions in Gabon for the past 10 years, the Governnent could easily plan to
abolish the death penalty in its |egislation and consequently ratify the
second Optional Protocol. The Governnent should al so take steps to



CCPR/ T SR 1543
page 13

di ssem nate infornation on the international human rights instrunents nore

wi dely and include human rights education in the curricula of schools and in
training programmes for the police and arnmed forces. The provisions of
article 14, paragraph 7, of the Covenant shoul d be incorporated i nto Gabonese
| aw and guarant ees should al so be proclainmed in | egislation to ensure respect
for articles 15 and 22.

54. M. BRUNL CELLI warmy thanked the del egation for its presentation of
the initial report and for its willingness to cooperate, as denonstrated by
its dialogue with the Commttee. The Covernnent could avail itself of the
advi sory and technical assistance services of the Centre for Human Rights in
preparing its second periodic report and in planning steps for securing
enhanced i npl ementation of the Covenant. The exchanges that had taken pl ace
had provi ded an opportunity both to bring out continuing concerns about the
human rights situation in Gabon and to note the progress already nmade in
dealing with difficulties. He hoped the delegation would transnit to the
national authorities the results of the fruitful debate that had taken pl ace
within the Conmttee as quickly as possible.

55. M. FRANOS said that the aimof his question about |egislation on
registering political parties had sinply been to determ ne whet her the

| egi sl ati on had been framed in such a way as to avoid any conflict between the
parties. He also hoped that the next periodic report would reflect progress
infilling in the gaps in national |egislation on respect for human rights.

He was pl eased by the fact that the del egati on of Gabon had been one of the
fewto include a representative of the Mnistry of the Interior, the deputy
director of the central prison

56. M. MAMBOUNDOU MOUYAMA  (Gabon) thanked the Conmittee for the indul gence
it had shown towards his Government over the delay in submtting its initia
report and hoped that the delegation's responses had filled in the gaps. The
del egation regarded its exchanges with the Commttee as an enriching

experience and would report in witing to the mnistries concerned on the
results of the review which had taken place. He assured the Conmttee that

t he Gabonese authorities would endeavour to submt a second periodic report
that was as conplete as possible within the prescribed tinme period.

57. The CHAI RVAN announced that the Committee had thereby concluded its
consi deration of the initial report of Gabon.

58. The del egation of Gabon wi t hdrew

The neeting rose at 12.45 p. m




